
 

 

           Meeting Notice  
 

 

The next meeting of the Gunnison Valley 
Transportation Authority (RTA) will take place: 

 

November 7, 2025, at 8:00 a.m. 
In the Commissioners’ Room 

located in the Gunnison County Courthouse, 
200 East Virginia Avenue in Gunnison. 

 
 

For copies of the agenda and minutes of 
previous meetings, please go to 

www.gunnisonvalleyrta.com/meetings  
or call Scott Truex at 970-275-0111. 

 

Two or more County Commissioners may be in 
attendance at this meeting. 

 

Also, three or more RTA Board Members may attend the monthly 
Mayor/Manager meetings which are held at noon on the first Thursday of each 

month – call Scott Truex at 970-275-0111 for the next meeting location.  

1



 

 

AGENDA – NOVEMBER 7, 2025 
GUNNISON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

GUNNISON COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM – 8:00 A.M. 

 
 

 
8:00 A. INTRODUCTION  
 
CONSENT AGENDA – motion & decision requested to approve the consent agenda 

B. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
 C.  APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 
 D. FINANCIAL REPORT  

E. CORRESPONDENCE - None 
F. OLD BUSINESS 

1) Air program reports 
2) Bus program reports  

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 

8:05 F. OLD BUSINESS - continued 
3) Airport update – Rick Lamport 
4) Tourism and Prosperity Partnership report – Andrew Sandstrom 
5) Air service update – Bill Tomcich 
6) Executive Director’s report – Scott Truex 
7) Request for bus route change in Gunnison – moving the route from Georgia 

Avenue to Virginia Avenue between Teller St. and Colorado St. – discussion – 
Scott Truex – motion and decision requested  

8) Facility at 301 W. Tomichi Avenue – update on grant contract and discussion – 
Scott Truex 

9) Update on proposed amendments to initial GVRTA Intergovernmental Agreement 
– Scott Truex  

10) Update on contract with CDOT for second daily Bustang Outrider service between 
Crested Butte and Denver – Scott Truex – possible motion and decision 
requested 

11) Changing form of meeting minutes – Scott Truex and Leia Morrison – discussion 
and new staff recommendation 
 

9:05 G. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 

9:10 H. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS & STAFF 
 

9:15 I. NEW BUSINESS 
1) Request for approval of bus window art – Upper Gunnison River Water 

Conservancy District – Sue Earling & Scott Truex – motion and decision requested 
2) Planning for possible future bus service to Montrose – Scott Truex – discussion 

2



3) Request from Gunnison County to fund local match for building new bus stops at 
Brush Creek Rd. as part of the new roundabout/underpass project.  Scott Truex – 
motion and decision requested  

4) GVRTA 2026 Budget – Scott Truex – discussion & motion and decision requested 
5) 2026 – 2030 GVRTA Five-year Financial Plan – Scott Truex – discussion & motion and 

decision requested 
6) Executive session to discuss contract negotiations with Truex Management 

Services  
7) Authorization for the Board Chair to sign a contract with Truex Management 

Services, Inc. to provide management services for the GVRTA beginning January 1, 
2026 – Matt Schwartz & Scott Truex – motion & decision requested 
 

10:45 J. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING  
 

All times are approximate – the meeting may move more quickly or more slowly than indicated. 
Next meeting – November 7th at 8:00 a.m. in the Gunnison County Courthouse.  

3



GUNNISON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
MEETING MINUTES  
September 26, 2025 

Town of Crested Butte Town Council Chambers 
A. INTRODUCTION
Matt Schwartz called the meeting to order at 8:00 am
Board members in attendance:  Nicholas Kempin, Anna Fennerty, Diego Plata, Laura Puckett
Daniels, Matt Schwartz, Steve Morris, Ian Billick (ZOOM), Liz Smith

Scott Truex, Leia Morrison, Mike Patterson (ZOOM), Bill Tomcich, Dean Herrera, Kim Bolling 
(ZOOM), Andrew Sandstrom, JD Crichton (ZOOM), Kathleen Fogo (ZOOM), Carlos G, and 
community members are also present. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
B. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA
C. APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 8, 2025 MEETING MINUTES
D. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S FINANCIAL REPORT
E. CORRESPONDENCE
F. OLD BUSINESS
1) Air program reports
2) Bus program reports

Diego Plata moved to approve the consent agenda. Laura Puckett Daniels seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  

REGULAR AGENDA 

F. OLD BUSINESS CONTINUED
3) Airport Update - no report

4) Tourism and Prosperity Partnership (TAPP) report
Andrew Sandstrom reported that winter marketing kicked off last week and that overall, winter is
pacing slightly ahead of last year.

5) Air Service Update
Bill Tomcich informed the board that he met with United Network Planning yesterday and that
they talked specifically about the Gunnison Flight Program, and that they are very pleased, and
in fact, they want to plan on a future visit here for one of these meetings. Tomcich updated the
board on the winter schedule and said that GUC is back down to two flights a day, through the
rest of November. After December 18th, we will be back to 3 flights a day from Denver and daily
service from Houston. He also reported that we are going to have an opportunity to utilize some
of the SCASD funds by repurposing this grant that was intended for summer DFW service and
applying it towards the Chicago flight in the winter. Tomcich said that we now have a total of 22
round-trip flights scheduled for this winter on 11 weekends, so that's Fridays and Saturdays

4



inbound, returning on Saturdays and Sundays. Bill also reported that there are only a total of 24 
Airbus 319s that have special performance modifications, including special engines, and that 
many are coming up for maintenance this year. Because of this, unfortunately, they're going to 
be forced to down-gauge the Gunnison service for 2019 to twice-daily flights on a CRJ700 
aircraft. This is an unfortunate step backwards in potential reliability, and there will be a 
reduction in capacity during the holidays. 
 
6) Executive Director’s report 
Scott Truex updated the board on some changes to the on-transit alerts. He also introduced 
Steve Anderson as the new chief mechanic in Gunnison. The new website will be live next 
week. Truex reported that since we will be increasing the size of our diesel fleet, we are looking 
into the possibility of putting a diesel fueling station on our property across the alley from our 
maintenance facility. He will bring the board a proposal to consider at a future meeting. 
 
7) Facility at 301 W. Tomichi Avenue 
Truex followed up with the GVRTA’s attorney regarding our protection in the event of an 
underestimate of costs and learned that we are covered, in that the architect would be required 
to redesign the project if we wanted them to do that. Truex is still waiting on a grant contract 
from CDOT. There was a discussion about the lack of communication and the time it takes for 
CDOT to grant contracts.  
 
8) Update on proposed amendments to the initial GVRTA Intergovernmental Agreement.  
Scott Truex reported that we are working through comments. Truex hopes to be able to send a 
new IGA to all of the jurisdictions for adoption shortly. 
 
9) Update on changing the form of meeting minutes from written minutes to using a recording of 
the meeting. 
This new form of keeping minutes will include time stamps (with background information), action 
items, and general minutes with audio. If this is the direction that the board would like to take, 
the board will be presented with a resolution at the next meeting. 
 
10) Update on contract with CDOT for second daily Bustang Outrider service between Crested 
Butte and Denver  
Truex received a draft scope of work for this contract late last week, and he had and still has 
many questions for CDOT. This board had committed $71k in this year’s budget, and were 
planning to budget about $107k next year for the second Denver bus; however, the contract 
came in at $286k per year. When questioned as to how they came to this number, CDOT said 
that it was because it is 1/8th of the cost of running both round-trips. Truex reported that we 
won’t get a contract fully executed in 2025, so we likely won’t be responsible for any costs this 
year. Since we were sharing the costs with Chaffee County, Truex has asked CDOT to confirm 
if Chaffee County is still on board for the higher costs. The board decided that the best way to 
move forward is to ask for a meeting with the original group (including Chaffee County and the 
director of the DTR) to make sure we are all on the same page and to discuss how to resolve 
these issues and get to a contract. Truex has also been asked by the board to seek out detailed 

5



information about cost, ridership, and Bustang’s plan for the reservation system. There was also 
discussion of the GVRTA looking into funding and running their own bus service to and from 
Montrose and potentially pooling resources with other community entities.  
 
G. Public Comment - There was no public comment 
 
H. Comments from Board & Staff - There were no Board or staff comments 
 
I. New Business 
1) Update on Bus purchases and the impact of tariffs on bus pricing 
Truex reported to the board that the additional costs will be fairly small (adding about 0.6% to 
the cost of each bus for this year.  
 
2) Request for bus route change in Gunnison – moving the route from Georgia Avenue to 
Virginia Avenue between Teller St. and Colorado St.  
Truex informed the board that there has been a request made from some of the bus drivers who 
note that Georgia Avenue is narrower than Virginia Avenue and that it can be difficult to make 
the turn in the winter when cars are parked on the north side of Georgia. Truex reached out to 
City staff, and they will likely have traffic data to share with us next month. They don’t oppose 
the route change, but they do recommend a public process before making a change. 
 
3) Discussion regarding a possible MOU with Gunnison County for the GVRTA to 
provide aid and assistance to Gunnison County in the event of an emergency or 
disaster 
Truex will reach out to Mathew Birnie to discuss this possible MOU. 
 
4) GVRTA Draft 2026 Budget and Budget Assumptions  
Truex presented some of the highlights, including that he feels it is a conservative budget, that 
it includes the purchase of four new, larger buses and two smaller buses. This plan also includes 
the build of the enhanced bus stop and the MRG for Houston and Chicago. This budget also 
includes $450,000 for senior services, a 41-trip free bus schedule in the winter, and 33 trips 
during the rest of the year. It also includes a contribution of $50,000 to the county-led LA-135 
corridor project, planning project. He reported that total revenues are budgeted at $11.46 
million, and expenses at $12.26 million, so it will drop our cash reserves by about $800,000, but 
we would also increase our capital assets by about $5.6 million. The board discussed that 
budgeting funds should be set aside for planning for the Brush Creek Intercept lot.  
 
5) 2026 – 2030 Draft GVRTA Five-year Financial Plan 9:35 
Truex went over some of the highlights that included increasing round-trip bus service in 
2027m upgrading the last two bus stops in Gunnison, and adding a bus stop in CB South. Truex 
also talked about purchasing buses to replace our current fleet over time, which is highly grant-

6



dependent. He noted that there is a $500k placeholder in this plan to improve a possible park 
and ride at Brush Creek in 2028.  

6) Executive session to discuss contract negotiations with Truex Management Services

At this point Steve Morris moved and Diego Plata seconded a motion that this meeting of 
Board of the Gunnison Valley Transportation Authority adjourn and, upon affirmative vote of 
two-thirds of the members present, reconvene in executive session for the sole purpose of 
determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations; developing 
strategy for negotiations; and instructing negotiators as authorized by CRS 24-6-402(4)(e) for 
the purpose of discussion and negotiations with Truex Management Services for the services 
of Scott Truex. The motion passed 7-1 with Fenerty voting no. 

Matt Schwartz stated the following: “This Executive Session is not open to the public, and 
action may not be taken. It is Friday, September 26th, and the time is 9:43 a.m. 

For the record, I am the presiding officer, Matt Schwartz, Board Chair. Present at this Executive 
Session are the RTA board members in attendance and the following persons: Scott Truex and 
Kathy Fogo. If, at any point in the Executive Session, any participant believes the discussion is 
going outside the proper scope of the Executive Session, please interrupt the discussion and 
make an objection for the record.” 

The board moved into executive session at 9:46 a.m. 

The executive session was concluded at 10:27 a.m. 

Matt Schwartz stated that “For the record, if any person who participated in the Executive 
Session believes that any substantial discussion of any matters not included in the motion to go 
into Executive Session occurred during the Executive Session or that any improper action 
occurred during the Executive Session in violation of the Open Meetings Law, I would ask that 
you state your concerns for the record.” No concerns were stated. 

7) Authorization for the Board Chair to sign a contract with Truex Management Services, Inc. to 
provide management services for the GVRTA beginning January 1, 2026. No action was taken 
during the Executive Session.

No action was taken 

The meeting adjourned at 10:28 am 

7



 

 

September, 2025 - Financial Report: 
 

 

This report was prepared for the GVRTA Board of Directors on October 29, 2025 
with information provided by the County Finance Department and shows posted 
revenues through August, 2025 and expenditures through September, 2025.   

Sales Tax Revenues: 

 

  

8



GVRTA Fund Reports: 

 

  

9



GVRTA Fund Reports: 

 

10



Summary of all Funds  

 

  GVRTA Housing Report and Housing Contributions to General Fund: 

 

 

11



GVRTA Capital Assets & Bus Fleet:  

 

12



RTA Board of Directors Meeting, November 2025 
Air Program Report – Bill Tomcich 

 
 
September Results – United: 
• Reliability and OTP: 100% completed, 86.7% on time. 
• Passenger #s: 9,822 total revenue passengers – up +42% over last year, while also smashing 

GUC’s prior record September when 6,847 passengers were recorded in 2022. 
• Load Factor: 78.0% this September versus 78.3% last September. 
 
October Results – United: 
• Reliability and OTP: 100% completed, 86.8% on time. 
• Preliminary Passenger #s: 8,407 total revenue passengers – up +40% over last year’s prior 

record October. 
• Load Factor: 69.0% this October versus 69.3% last October. 
 
September Results – JSX: 
• Passenger #s: 876 total passengers – up +10% over last year. 
• Load Factor: 63.5% this year versus 74.0% last year. 
• Summer Overall:  5,600 total passengers – up +12% over last summer. 

 
Future Bookings: (as of October 27)  
• November: Now pacing +29% ahead of last year on iden�cal capacity. 
• Winter: Now pacing +1% ahead of last winter overall with December and January pacing 

well ahead while February and March are pacing behind on very small numbers. 
 
Future Schedules through Fall 2025: 
• United from DEN:  2x daily October 26 – December 17. 

 
Current Published Winter 2025/26 Schedules: 
• United from DEN: 3x daily December 18 – March 28. 
• United from IAH: One flight daily December 18 – March 28. 
• United from ORD: Fri-Sat in / Sat-Sun out December 19 – January 4 & February 6 – March 29. 
• American from DFW: 2x daily with CRJ700s from December 18, 2025 – January 5, 2026, then 

12x/week (one Tue/Wed) January 6 -February 11, then 2x daily February 12- April 6. 
 
Total Winter 2025/26 Seat Capacity: (as of October 30) 
• American:  Down -15.9% 
• United: Up +4.9% 
• Combined: Down -0.8%  

13



 
 Bus program reports – September, 2025 
 
 
                         Passengers by Month 
 

 
 

Passengers by Stop – Summer, 2025 

 

14



 

 
Late and Missed Runs 

 

   

15



Passenger Boardings by Time – Summer, 2025 

 

 

16



 
  

   

17



2025 Miles per Bus: 

 
 

2025 Repairs per Bus:   

 
 

Senior Transportation Report 

 

18



 

     

Executive Director’s Report 
         November 7, 2025 Board Meeting Packet 
     
 

 
 
Bus Operations Report: 
 

• Ridership in September was up 1.8%. 
• We completed 99.2% of our trips and the on-time performance was excellent with 88% 

of trips within 5 minutes of schedule and 96% within ten minutes.  We only missed eight 
round-trips in September. 
 

Grant updates: 
 

• As previously reported, we have been awarded $378,019 in 2026 Section 5311 
operating grant funds and we should receive a grant contract sometime this fall.   

• I’ve worked with Craig Secrest at the Clean Transit Enterprise Fund and he has been able 
to award us an advance on our 2027 funds of $286k which will allow us to purchase all 
three of our smaller, 30 passenger buses in 2026.   We were previously awarded 
$455,000, so we will now receive $731k for the buses which should cover about 72% of 
the cost.  I plan to work with Colorado Mountain Purchasing Consortium (CMPC) 
towards purchasing the three new smaller buses. 

• We will have to wait until the government shutdown is resolved before we will hear 
about our application for two more expansion buses from FY2026 CDS.   

• We are also waiting to hear if we will be awarded an FTA Section 5339(a) grant to 
replace bus #506.   

• CDOT’s next capital call for projects has been released and I will apply for a replacement 
bus in that round of funding before the deadline of December 4th.  

 
Other Items: 
 

• August sales tax was essentially flat compared to last year.   
• Year-to-date sales tax revenues are up 5.4% vs last year and 2.3% above budget. 
• We’ve transitioned to Swiftly for posting alerts to the Transit app and we think the bugs 

have been worked out… the fall was a good time to make the transition!  Thanks to 
Mike for his work to get this accomplished.  

• Mike has been working with Ken Barbour (Thumper) to get all of the bus stop lighting 
working properly before the winter season and has also improved the trash can 
situation by hiring a local welder to reweld the lid attachments.   

• Ann Beauvais has inspected our buses in Winnipeg and Pembina and reports that she is 
very impressed with the factory and the manufacturing processes.  She had no negative 
news to report. 

19



 

• The new website is up and running and it looks great!  Thanks to Leia for her work on 
this.  

• At this moment, all of our buses are in service, though we do have an issue with some 
performance issues on #503 which has been a bit confounding.  Steve and his crew are 
working to determine the root cause.  

• The costs of creating our own diesel fueling station is estimated to be in the $350k range 
when we include all of the engineering costs associated with the project.  We are not 
recommending moving forward with this project right now, but we would like to do 
more research and consider this as a project in 2027. 

• Lastly, I wanted to let you know that the Master Agreement for federal grant contracts 
has been amended and now includes that the “Recipient will cooperate with Federal 
officials in the enforcement of Federal law, including cooperating with and not impeding 
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) and other Federal offices and 
components of the Department of Homeland Security in the enforcement of Federal 
immigration law.” 

20



 

    MEMO 
    November 7, 2025 Board Meeting Packet 
    To: GVRTA Board of Directors 
    From Scott Truex, Executive Director 

Re: Request for bus route change in Gunnison 

 
 
 
Board Members, 
 
We have received a request from Destination Systems to consider modifying the route.  They are 
requesting a change to make the left-hand turn from Teller St. on E. Virginia Ave. instead of on E. 
Georgia Ave. to get from Teller to Colorado Street.   
 
Currently, the bus follows this route:   The request is to change to this route: 
 

 
 
 
The route was originally set up the way it is because there is a four-way stop on the corner of Colorado 
and Georgia so we thought it would be a safer route.  However, there are times (particularly in the 
winter) when the turn onto Georgia from Teller can get very tight and some drivers have requested that 
we amend the route to turn left onto Virgina which is wider.   
 
We did discuss this during our planning process last year, and the RTA operating plan includes the 
following: 
 
Currently, the bus route through Gunnison includes a left turn from Teller Street to Georgia Avenue 
before turning right onto Colorado Street. This left turn can be difficult to make due to the narrow 
street configuration. GVRTA should consider making the left turn one block earlier at the wider 
Virginia Avenue. There are multiple traffic implications that need to be further studied for feasibility 
of this routing change:  
 

21



 

• Collecting 24-hour traffic counts and speed data to understand traffic flow through the 
Virginia Avenue and Colorado Street intersection, and the impacts of a four-way stop instead 
of the current two-way stop.  
 
• Considering the traffic safety impacts:  

o Ensuring the sight distances are appropriate with no landscaping or foliage blocking 
the view for bus drivers or intersecting vehicles.  
 
o Evaluating the implications of having a bus stopping at a two-way stop intersection 
(Virigina Avenue and Colorado Street) compared to a four-way stop intersection. 
Note: the current routing through Georgia Avenue and Colorado Street ensures the 
bus stops at a four-way stop and has clear right-of-way.  
 
o The reduced reaction time for a vehicle turning off Tomichi Avenue (Highway 50) in 
the case a bus is turning onto Colorado Street. Currently the route turns onto Colorado 
Street two blocks north of Tomichi Avenue, but in the routing change, this would 
occur one block north of Tomichi Avenue.  
 

We reached out to city staff to see if they have any data on these intersections and/or if they would like 
to study (or have us study) the idea or comment on it before we make any decisions.  They responded 
formally – please see the response on the next page.   
 
We also posted flyers on the doors of the buildings on the blocks impacted by the change letting the 
residents and businesses know about this meeting. 
 
The staff requests direction from the Board of Directors on how you would like us to handle this request 
to change the route.   
 
I look forward to our discussion and please let me know if you have any questions.   
 
Thank you, 
Scott Truex 
Executive Director 
  

22



 

 
 

October 14, 2025 
 
RE: Request for Route Change  
 
Mr. Truex and the RTA Board, 
 
Thank you for reaching out through the city traffic calming website and submitting an inquiry. 
 
The City of Gunnison received your request to alter the route for the RTA commuter bus service to 
utilize one block of E Virginia Ave instead of one block of E Georgia Ave. Based upon the City of 
Gunnison 2030 Comprehensive Plan, the street classification of the proposed route matches the street 
classification of the existing route. Therefore, the Public Works Department supports the proposed 
change and requests that the RTA conduct outreach to the neighbors along the new route prior to 
implementing the change. 
 
Thank you for your time, 
 
Carly McGowan, P.E. 
City Engineer 
1100 W Virginia Ave 
Gunnison, CO 81230 
 
(970) 641-8020 
cmcgowan@gunnisonco.gov 
  

23

mailto:cmcgowan@gunnisonco.gov


 

NOTICE OF MEETING WHICH MAY RESULT 
IN A CHANGE TO THE RTA BUS ROUTE 

 
 

 
 
 
Notice to the Residents and Businesses of Georgia Avenue, Virginia Avenue between Colorado Street 
and Teller Street and the Residents and Businesses of Colorado Street and Teller Street between Georgia 
Avenue and Virginia Avenue,  
 
The Gunnison Valley RTA has received a request to consider modifying our commuter bus route.  The 
request is to change the route to make the left-hand turn from Teller St. on E. Virginia Ave. instead of on 
E. Georgia Ave. to get from Teller to Colorado Street.   
 
Currently, the bus follows this route:   The request is to change to this route: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The request is being considered because there are times (particularly in the winter) when the turn onto 
Georgia from Teller can get very tight and the left turn onto Virgina is wider and therefore easier to 
maneuver the bus through.   
 

This request will be considered at the November 7th meeting of the Gunnison Valley RTA Board of 
Directors.  The meeting will take place at 8:00 a.m. in the Gunnison County Courthouse located at 200 E. 
Virginia Avenue upstairs in the Commissioners’ meeting room on November 7th.   

The meeting is open to the public and public comment will be heard.  If you would prefer to submit your 
comments via email, please send them to struex@gunnisonvalleyrta.org. 

24

mailto:struex@gunnisonvalleyrta.org


 

    MEMO 
    November 7, 2025 Board Meeting Packet 
    To: GVRTA Board of Directors 
    From Scott Truex, Executive Director 

Re: Facility at 301 W. Tomichi Avenue 
 
 
 
Board Members, 
 
As you know we have been waiting for CDOT to send us a grant contract for the $1,000,000 in State 
funding to fund our new facility next to the Safeway.  Recently, I did receive a contract.  However, there 
was a problem with it.  The proposed contract contained old information in the scope of work which 
required me to send an immediate request to amend the contract.  I have been assured that they will 
expedite this request, but as of this packet I have not received a new contract.  
 
The good news is that once we get the contract, we are ready to move forward with the RFQ to select an 
architect.  The RFQ will take about two months from the time of publication to the time of selecting a 
contractor and then we should be able to move quickly to design.  
 
Due to the delay, I’ve moved all costs for this project to the 2026 budget.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 
Thank you, 
Scott Truex 
Executive Director 

25



 

    MEMO 
    November 7, 2025 Board Meeting Packet 
    To: GVRTA Board of Directors 
    From Scott Truex, Executive Director 

Re: GVRTA Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) Update  
 
 
 
Board Members, 
 
We have sent the final version of the amended and restated IGA along to the three municipalities and 
the County for adoption.  The City of Gunnison has adopted the IGA and it is likely that the other entities 
will do so before the November Board meeting.  
 
We should be able to formally amend our bylaws as we have previously discussed at the December 
meeting.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 
Thank you, 
Scott Truex 
Executive Director 

26



 

    MEMO 
    November 7, 2025 Board Meeting Packet 
    To: GVRTA Board of Directors 
    From Scott Truex, Executive Director 

Re: Update on contract with CDOT for second daily Bustang 
Outrider service between Crested Butte and Denver 

 
Board Members, 
 
After further discussions with CDOT this week, they have now proposed that the RTA and Chaffee 
County each contribute $143,085 to cover 50% of the losses for the second trip between Crested Butte 
and Denver.     
 
Since our last meeting, we’ve spoken to representatives from Chaffee County about this request and we 
will have a follow up meeting with them next week.  Leia and I will update you on our discussions at the 
board meeting.   
 
At our September Board Meeting, you requested data about the Denver bus service and I obtained the 
information on both ridership and costs for 2024 and 2025.   

 
 
We had expected ridership to increase more than it has, but the issues of overcrowding seem to have 
been resolved and we are hopeful that we can increase ridership through more public awareness.   
 
The staff recommendation is to contribute the requested $143k for this service and I have included this 
amount in the budget that you will be considering later on in the meeting.  Please let me know if you 
have any questions.   
 
Thank you, 
Scott Truex 
Executive Director 

27



 

    MEMO 
    November 7, 2025 Board Meeting Packet 
    To: GVRTA Board of Directors 
    From Scott Truex, Executive Director 

Re: Changing the form of meeting minutes 
 
 
 
Board Members, 
 
After several months of testing the transition to audio minutes, Leia and I have reviewed the pros and 
cons of changing the current format. Based on our findings, we recommend that the RTA reconsider this 
change and continue using written minutes. 
 
Because the RTA meets in three different locations, capturing consistently clear recordings has proven 
difficult. Leia has also identified additional challenges that she can discuss with you at the meeting. 
 
We propose that we continue using our current written minutes format and improve them by including 
links to the Zoom meeting recordings, and by adding a time stamp for each agenda item in the minutes. 
 
This approach would allow anyone to easily locate discussions while ensuring that our minutes remain 
consistent and compliant with requirements. 
 
Leia and I look forward to discussing this with you at the meeting.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 
Thank you, 
Scott Truex 
Executive Director 

28



 

    MEMO 
    November 7, 2025 Board Meeting Packet 
    To: GVRTA Board of Directors 
    From Scott Truex, Executive Director 

Re: Request from UGRWCD for approval of bus window art  
 
 
 
Board Members, 
 
We received the attached artwork for your consideration to be placed on three of our buses.  It’s been a 
while since we’ve had one of these requests, therefore, I’ve also included our policy for advertising on 
bus windows for easy reference.   
 
I believe that this request complies with our policy and Sue Uerling will be at the meeting in case you 
have any questions.   
 
Thank you, 
Scott Truex 
Executive Director 

29



 

 

  

OUR WATER
OUR VALLEY

30



  

WE GO WITH
THE FLOW

 
31



 

WATER YOU WAITING
FOR? CONSERVE!

32



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GUNNISON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (GVRTA) 
POLICY REGARDING ADVERTISEMENTS ON BUSES 

 
 
The Gunnison Valley Transportation Authority (GVRTA) desires to utilize its fleet of buses to 
promote valley-wide interests as expressed through governmental entities within its jurisdiction, 
including WSCU, and local non-profit entities.  To achieve this goal, the GVRTA authorizes signs 
to be placed on the exterior of its bus windows under the following conditions: 
 

1. The governmental or non-profit entity must make a presentation to the Board and obtain 
Board approval for the proposed signage.  Such approval shall be valid for up to three 
years.  

2. The sign(s) must be made of perforated vinyl designed to be see-through from the interior 
of the bus. 

3. The sign(s) must be provided by and paid for by the entity desiring to advertise. 
4. Each sign must fit within each side window of a bus and entirely cover the window. 
5. Sign(s) must be applied by a professional installer and removed by entity staff under the 

direction of Alpine Express no later than three years after approval (unless an extension is 
granted by the Board). 

 
After the adoption of this policy, the following guidelines may apply: 
 
1. WSCU may advertise in all appropriate windows on the right side of 1 bus; 
2. Other governmental entities and non-profit entities may advertise in one window of up to 

three of the remaining buses as available.  
3. Signs will be placed only on the right (passenger) side windows of the buses. 
4. There are six windows available for advertising on each bus and windows will be available 

on a first come, first serve basis.  If more entities desire to advertise than there is space 
available, then a waiting list will be created. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted 5-7-21 

33



 

    MEMO 
    November 7, 2025 Board Meeting Packet 
    To: GVRTA Board of Directors 
    From Scott Truex, Executive Director 

Re: Planning for possible future bus service to Montrose 
 
 
Board Members, 
 
After our discussion last meeting, we contacted several colleagues to brainstorm possible funding 
sources for a future bus service between Montrose and Gunnison.  I anticipate that running a small bus 
twice daily for a year would cost about $300k in operations.   
 
At the moment, there are not a lot of options available for funding.  Representatives from Gunnison 
County and San Miguel County who work with the Southwest Colorado Opioid Regional Council both 
suggested the possibility of applying for funding from the Opioid Abatement Council.  However, since we 
want the service to be open to the general public, this funding source may prove to be limited.  We are 
meeting again next week to discuss the idea more thoroughly and we will update you at the meeting.       
 
Since we were meeting with CDOT regarding the second Denver bus, we did bring up this subject and 
they have not shut the door on the idea of helping to provide this service.   We will continue discussions 
with CDOT and other potential partners looking for ways to fund the operational expenses for a future 
bus service between Gunnison and Montrose. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 
Thank you, 
Scott Truex 
Executive Director 

34



 

    MEMO 
    November 7, 2025 Board Meeting Packet 
    To: GVRTA Board of Directors 
    From Scott Truex, Executive Director 

Re: Request from Gunnison County to fund bus stops at Brush 
Creek 

 
 
 
Board Members, 
 
We received the attached letter from Gunnison County requesting that we fund the local match for the 
costs of moving and rebuilding the bus stops as part of the Brush Creek Roundabout improvements 
project.  The request is for $85,200 of the total cost of $426,000.  This represents the local match of 20% 
of the capital costs.   
 
This project will be integrated into the overall roundabout project that will include an underpass for 
pedestrians to safely walk between the Whetstone Village and the RTA bus stops.   
 
I recommend that the Board approve the request and have taken the liberty to include it in the 2026 
budget which is up for adoption later in the meeting in case you decide to do so.       
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 
Thank you, 
Scott Truex 
Executive Director 

35



36



37



38



 

          2026 GVRTA 

Final Budget – For Board Adoption 11/7/25 

                      (Prepared on October 30, 2025) 

 

 

The next pages comprise the Final 2026 GVRTA Budget as presented the GVRTA Board of 
Directors at the November 7. 2025 meeting.  The Board of Directors may make changes 
before adopting the budget.  

Major changes since the last draft: 

• Total Sales tax revenues have been increased by $59k due to more information 
being available since the last draft. 

• Sales tax to Capital fund has been increased by $200k to cover additional expenses. 
• Sales tax to General fund has been reduced by $141k. 
• The allocation between diesel and CNG fuel has been adjusted to reflect more diesel 

coaches coming into the fleet in early 2026. 
• The grant revenues and associated expenses for purchasing the four MCI coaches 

have been adjusted to reflect more accurate costs.  
• The CTE grant has been amended by adding $284k and the associated bus purchases 

has been increased by $340k due to the ability to get an advance on the grant to buy 
all three coaches in 2026 instead of over two years. 

• Due to the delay in getting a grant contract, all of the grant revenues and facility 
expenses for the 301 Tomichi project have been moved to 2026. 

• $100k has been added to capital expenses for planning for a future Brush Creek Park 
n Ride. 

• $85.2k has been added to capital expenses to cover the local match for the County 
grant to build the new bus stops at Brush Creek. 

 

  

39



2026 Budget Assumptions: 

• Sales Tax 
o 2026 sales tax is budgeted to be 3% above 2025 projections. 

 

• Capital Fund 
o The Capital Fund is allocated $1,250,000 in sales tax revenues in 2026 
o Section 5339(a) Grant funding is budgeted to cover 80% of the cost of two 

buses.  
 We were awarded a grant for $1,426,924. 

o Section 5339(b) Grant funding is budgeted to cover 85% of the cost of two 
buses.  
 We were awarded a grant for $1,516,108. 

o State SB-267 grant funding of $1,000,000 is included to build the enhanced 
bus stop on Hwy 50 in Gunnison. 

o State CTE grant funding of $739,000 for bus purchases to expand service. 
o Projects: 

 Purchasing four full sized buses - $888,461 each. 
• Two with 5339(a) grant funding covering 80% of the cost. 
• Two with 5339(b) grant funding covering 85% of the cost. 

 Purchasing three smaller buses for future service expansion - $340,000 
each.  

 Building the enhanced bus stop and GVRTA offices on Hwy 50 in 
Gunnison - $1,500,000 

 $100,000 is budgeted for planning for a Park n Ride at Brush Creek 
 $85,200 is  budgeted for the County to use for a local match for 

moving the Brush Creek bus stops. 
 

• Air Command Fund 
o The Air Command Fund is allocated $650,000 from sales tax revenues in 

2026. 
o Winter flights are guaranteed to Houston and Chicago.  

 Total maximum MRG payments are budgeted. 
• $204,352 is budgeted for Houston. 
• $308,004 is budgeted for Chicago. 

o We may be able to reduce our costs associated with the Chicago flight by 
using SCASD grant funding, and will pursue this more with the DOT once the 
government shutdown is resolved.  

o Air Services Manager (including travel expenses) - $111,000 
o Airline Mechanic Contribution - $60,000 

 

40



• Senior Transportation Fund 
o The Senior Transportation Fund is allocated $464,000 from sales tax revenues 

in 2026. 
o Senior transportation operations continue with no changes in 2026. 

 Contracts are budgeted at: 
• $330,000 for GVH. 
• $130,000 for Mountain Express. 

 

• General Fund 
o The remaining Sales Tax ($4,218,000) is allocated to the General Fund. 
o The GVRTA Commuter Bus operates on a 41 round-trip winter bus schedule 

and a 33 round-trip spring, summer, and fall bus schedule. 
o Includes $50,000 contribution be included towards funding the Hwy 135 

Corridor Plan under Contracted Temporary Help. 
o $143,000 is budgeted for the local match for the second daily bus to Denver.  

 

• Overall 
o Total revenues are budgeted to be $11,907,632. 
o Total expenditures are budgeted not to exceed $12,922,503. 
o Total cash fund balance is budgeted to be reduced by $1,014,871. 
o Capital assets will increase by a total of $6,087,312 less depreciation. 
o Four new large buses - $3,567,312 
o Three new small buses - $1,020,000 
o Enhanced bus stop project - $1,500,000  
o Ending fund balance is budgeted to be $4,637,114. 
o The ending unrestricted fund balance is budgeted to be $3,973,944. 
o The minimum unrestricted fund balance mandated by the board under this 

budget would be $2,630,800. 
 

  

41



 

42



  
43



44



 

Cost of buildings and facilities over time 

 

45



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 

 
 Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan – for adoption by the Board of Directors on November 7, 2025  
 
This Five‐Year Financial Plan is intended to assist the Gunnison Valley RTA (GVRTA) Board of Directors and the community to ensure that 
we allocate our limited resources to provide services and results that are in line with the community’s expectations while achieving long‐
term financial balance, responsible planning, and accountability. This Five‐Year Financial plan is a valuable evaluation tool that can serve 
the GVRTA Board of Directors in evaluating the fiscal implications of policy decisions and offering a process for publicly deliberating and 
making future budget choices.  
 
By using this financial plan in budget development, we will better understand and communicate the GVRTA’s financial challenges and 
opportunities, better understand the trade‐offs necessary to achieve financial balance, and assist in making financially sustainable 
decisions during the budget process.  
 
The GVRTA is in a sound financial position. Sales tax revenue collections continue to be sustainable and we have received numerous grants 
for capital, transit operations and air service. In addition, fund balances are at levels which can help to sustain the GVRTA in the event of 
an economic downturn.  We have also been able to accelerate implementing our capital plan over the past few years.  The GVRTA remains 
on a solid financial footing.  
 
The financial plan on the next pages includes notes for revenues and for each of our funds. These notes include assumptions based upon 
projections about the economy and the plan may need to be adjusted if the projected revenues are not obtained.  
 
The General Fund includes sustaining bus service at current levels in 2026 and beginning service expansion in the spring of 2027 as a result 
of the new CTE funding source.  
 
The Capital Reserve Fund balance is projected to fluctuate as we continue to improve our fleet and facilities.  
 
The Air Command Fund is planned to maintain a stable fund balance in order to be available to add new air service to the valley when 
appropriate. The Air Command fund balance is likely to increase beyond planned amounts because individual flight programs often 
perform so that maximum payments under MRG contracts are not necessary.  
 
The Senior Transportation Fund allows for continued senior services and the ability to replace vehicles as needed in the future.  

46



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 

   

Sales Tax Revenues: 

 

 

47



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 
  

48



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 
 

49



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 

 

50



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 

 

 

 

 

  

51



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 

 

52



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 

 

  

53



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 

 

54



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 

Actual, Projected and Planned Costs of Buildings and Facilities 

 

55



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 

 

56



 

Gunnison Valley RTA – Five Year Financial Plan 

 

 

 

 

57



 

1 
9/26/2025 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

THIS MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT (this Agreement) made 
effective January 1, 2026 is by and between the Gunnison Valley Transportation 
Authority (RTA), Gunnison, Colorado, and Truex Management Services, Inc., a 
Colorado Corporation (TMS). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 TMS provides the non-exclusive professional management services of Scott 
Truex (the Services); The RTA desires to engage TMS to provide the Services according 
to this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals and the mutual covenants 
and obligations hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows: 
 
TERM.   
 

  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date first set forth above and 
shall terminate on December 31, 2026, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.  This 
agreement may be renewed for three (3) successive one (1) year terms as provided herein. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES.   
   
 TMS shall provide to the RTA the services of Truex for the purposes of 
performing the duties of Executive Director for the RTA as described in the attached 
Position DescriptionScope of Work (Exhibit A).  Truex shall perform the duties of 
Executive Director for the RTA solely as directed by the governing board of the RTAand 
described by its governing documents and as managed by the Board of Directors of the 
RTA.  TMS shall also provide office space, telephones, computers, office equipment, and 
internet access for Truex’s use.  All of the above shall be referred to as “Sservices”. 
 
COMPENSATIONINDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  
 
(a) TMS is an independent contractor to the RTA.  Truex is not, and shall not be 

construed to be, an employee of RTA.; Aat all times while Truex provides services to 
RTA, he is and shall be an employee of TMS. 

 
(b) In exchange for these Services, the RTA shall pay TMS the contract rate of 

$17,916.67 per month for the 2026 calendar year (the Compensation); the 
Compensation shall be paid on or before the twentieth day of each month.   

 

58



 

2 
9/26/2025 

(c) The Compensation set forth in (b) above, is intended to fully compensate TMS for all 
of the services including all compensation for Truex, and all other charges, expenses, 
overhead, payroll costs, and employee benefits, except as specifically set forth herein.  

 
(d) The RTA shall reimburse TMS for any travel expenses incurred by Truex required for 

his performance as Executive Director of the RTA with the exception of vehicle 
expenses within Gunnison County, which shall be the expense of TMS.   

 
(e) TMS is not entitled to unemployment insurance benefits from the RTSA.  TMS 

is obligated to pay federal and state income tax on any monedys paid to TMS 
pursuant to this Agreement.  TMS will determine and be responsible to pay 
compensation for Truex, including any salary, vacation time, health insurance, 
retirement benefits, workmen’s compensation, and other benefits that TMS may 
determine to be appropriate, and pay Truex accordingly.  

 
INDEMNIFICATION.  
 
(a) TMS agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the RTA, its partners, officers, 

directors, agents and employees of and from any and all liability, claims, liens, 
demands, actions and causes of action whatsoever (including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and costs) arising out of or related to any loss, cost, damage or injury, including 
death, of any person or damage to property of any kind caused by the misconduct or 
negligent acts, errors or omissions of TMS or its employees or sub-consultants.  

 
(b) The RTA is protected by and subject to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act.  

Neither party shall interpret this provision as a waiver of governmental immunity. 
 
(c) This provision shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement with 

respect to any liability, injury or damage occurring prior to such termination.  
 
TERM, RENEWAL, AND TERMINATION.  
 
 This Agreement shall run for a period of twelve months starting January 1, 2026, 
and ending December 31, 2026.  Subject to the annual appropriation of funds by the RTA 
to provide the type of management services described herein, this agreement shall 
automatically renew for three (3) successive one-year terms unless written notice is given 
by RTA to TMS on or before October 1st of its intention to terminate this agreement. for 
the upcoming year.  In the event agreement is not terminated, the schedule of 
compensation contract rate set forth in subsection (b) above shall be increased by 4% 
over the compensation contract rate of the previous year. The parties shall discuss any 
changes to the Scope of Work no later than sixty (60) days’ prior to the beginning of the 
next contract term.  Either party TMS shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at 
any time, with or without cause, upon ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to the 
RTAother.  The RTA may not terminate this Agreement absent a breach of contract by 

59



 

3 
9/26/2025 

TMS.  RTA and TMS agree that annual performance reviews will be performed and 
performance goals will be set for the next year by RTA Board Members and Truex.   
 
ILLEGAL ALIEN ADDENDUM.   
 
 The Illegal Alien Addendum, attached hereto as Exhibit B, is incorporated herein 
by this reference.  TMS is the Contractor and RTA is the Owner for purposes of the 
Illegal Alien Addendum.   
 
 
INSURANCE.  
 
 TMS agrees that at all times during the term of this agreement, TMS will cause 
Truex to carry a professional liability policy in the amount of $2,000,000.  TMS shall 
also cause Truex to carry and maintain in full force and effect and at Truex’s sole cost 
and expense, comprehensive automobile liability insurance on all vehicles used in the 
performance of this agreement in the amount of $100,000.00 per person and $300,000.00 
per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.   and to carry an umbrella policy 
with a personal liability limit of at least $2,000,000 per occurrence.    
 
NOTICES.  
 
 Any notice, demand or communication which either party may desire or be 
required to give to the other party shall be in writing and shall be deemed sufficiently 
given or rendered if delivered personally or sent by certified first class US mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
 If to TMS: 
  Truex Management Services, Inc.  
  c/o Scott Truex 

 P.O. Box 998 
 Crested Butte, CO  81224 
 

 If to RTA: 
  Board of Directors 

 Gunnison Valley Transportation Authority  
 P.O. Box 1191 
 Crested Butte, CO  81224 
 
With a copy to: 
 The County Manager 
 Gunnison County 
 200 E. Virginia 
 Gunnison, CO 81230 

 

60



 

4 
9/26/2025 

Either party has the right to designate in writing, served as provided above, a different 
address to which any notice, demand or communication is to be mailed. 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT.   
 
 This written Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties hereto 
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior agreements, 
proposals, negotiations and representations pertaining to the obligations Scope of 
Work.to be performed hereunder.  This Agreement shall not be modified or amended in 
any manner except by written instrument executed by the parties. 
 
 
APPLICABLE LAW.   
 
 This Agreement is entered into at Gunnison County, Colorado, and it is agreed 
that the proper jurisdiction and venue of any action pertaining to the interpretation of 
enforcement of this Agreement shall be in the District Court of Gunnison County, 
Colorado. 
 
INVALIDITY OR INAPPLICABILITY. 
 
 If any term, provision or paragraph of this Agreement, or the application thereof, 
be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such 
terms, provisions and paragraphs other than that which is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable, shall not be effected thereby and each of the remaining terms, provisions 
and paragraphs of the Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the extent permitted 
by law. 
 
BINDING AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement and the terms, covenants and conditions herein contained shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto 
upon approval of the parties, representatively. 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed the day 
and year first above written. 
 

TRUEX MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 
 
_________________________  By: _______________________________ 
Date              Scott A. Truex  

 Director 
 

 GUNNISON VALLEY   
TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY 

 

61



 

5 
9/26/2025 

_________________________  By:________________________________ 
Date           Matthew Schwartz 

 Chair of the Board of Directors 

62



 

6 
9/26/2025 

Exhibit A: Position DescriptionScope of Work: Gunnison Valley RTA Executive 
Director (RTA) 

Responsibilities Overview 

The Executive Director of the Gunnison Valley RTA (GVRTA) is responsible for managing, 
planning, directing, coordinating, and administering day-to-day activities, as well as 
short and long-term objectives of the GVRTA. The role requires a progressive approach 
and visionary leadership to continuously improve GVRTA services. Collaboration with 
the Board of Directors, Air Service Manager, Bus Operations Manager, and Marketing 
and Communications Manager is essential to implement Board policies and decisions. 

Requirements 

• Leadership: Forward-thinking approach to improve GVRTA services. 
• Financial Management: Develop, write, and manage federal and state grants. 

Ensure compliance with regulations to maintain funding. 
• Operational Oversight: Supervise contractors, manage budgets, oversee 

financial transactions, capital projects, and procurement. 
• Communication: Engage effectively with stakeholders, the public, officials, and 

contractors. 
• Technical Skills: Proficiency in budget management, contract negotiation, grant 

writing, software tools, and regulatory compliance. 
• Self-Sufficiency: Provide own vehicle, office space, and equipment. 

Broad ResponsibilitiesScope 

1. Financial Management: 
o Develop and oversee budgets. 
o Monitor financial transactions and create financial reports. 
o Manage audits and ensure compliance with regulations. 
o Oversee grant applications and reporting. 

2. Policy Implementation: 
o Work with the Board Chair to prepare meeting agendas and materials. 
o Implement Board directives. 
o Ensure GVRTA policies and plans are current and compliant. 

3. Operational Leadership: 
o Direct and coordinate day-to-day activities and operations. 
o Supervise and guide air service, marketing and communication, and bus 

operations managers to ensure timely and high-quality outcomes. 
o Negotiate contracts and oversee execution. 

4. Communication: 
o Act as the primary contact for stakeholders, public inquiries, and media. 
o Represent GVRTA at community and professional meetings. 

63



 

7 
9/26/2025 

o Maintain relationships with local, state, and federal partners. 

Detailed ResponsibilitiesScope 

General Tasks 

• Collaborate with municipalities, counties, and the state for transit system 
management. 

• Manage senior transportation programs with GVH and Mt. Express. 
• Guide negotiations with airlines and bus service providers. 
• Respond to public and law enforcement inquiries. 
• Present GVRTA goals and policies to the public. 

Administrative Duties 

• Create and update operational reports. 
• Draft RFPs for purchases and services. 
• Maintain organized and secure GVRTA records. 
• Ensure insurance policies are current and adequate. 
• Manage relationships with contractors and partners. 

Communication Responsibilities 

• Regularly communicate with: 
o Board members, managers, and contractors. 
o Federal and state representatives (CDOT, FTA, etc.). 
o News media and the general public. 

• Maintain and update transit schedules on platforms like Google Transit and 
Swiftly App. 

Contract Management 

• Draft and review contracts with legal counsel. 
• Oversee contracts with CDOT, transportation service providers, airlines, 

contractors, consultants, and others. 
• Ensure compliance with all contractual obligations. 

Financial Oversight 

• Prepare annual and five-year budgets. 
• Audit invoices and monitor monthly financial statements. 
• Ensure timely reimbursement requests and proper recording of revenues. 
• Submit required financial and performance reports. 

Grant Management 

64



 

8 
9/26/2025 

• Write and manage grant applications for federal and state funding. 
• Ensure compliance with CDOT and FTA requirements. 
• Submit monthly and quarterly reports. 
• Research new grant opportunities. 

Meeting Preparation 

• Create and distribute Board meeting agendas and packets. 
• Represent GVRTA at conferences and regional planning sessions. 
• Participate in Air Command, Board, and community meetings. 

Planning and Policy Development 

• Develop and maintain RTA plans, including: 
o Title VI Plan, LEP Plan, Substance Abuse Policy. 
o Fleet Management and Maintenance Plan. 

• Coordinate air and ground planning efforts. 
• Work with the Board on long-term strategies., including succession planning. 

Regulatory and Legal Compliance 

• Ensure ADA compliance and adherence to federal/state regulations. 
• Manage data retention and respond to public records requests. 
• File reports for DBE, NTD, and Drug/Alcohol Management. 

Essential Skills and Attributes 

• Analytical: Strong budgeting and financial skills and high attention to detail. 
• Interpersonal: Excellent communication with diverse groups. 
• Managerial: Ability to supervise, manage, and motivate people. 
• Technical: Proficiency in document and accounting software. 
• Regulatory Knowledge: Understanding of ADA, DBE, and other compliance 

requirements. 
• Independent: Ability to self-motivate and manage resources effectively. 

In summary, the Executive Director serves as the pivotal leader ensuring the 
operational, financial, and strategic success of the Gunnison Valley RTA. This 
multifaceted role requires a balance of technical expertise, effective communication, 
and visionary leadership to drive forward the mission of delivering safe, reliable, and 
innovative transit solutions to the Gunnison Valley community. 

 
 
 
  

65



 

9 
9/26/2025 

 Exhibit B:  Illegal Alien Addendum 
ILLEGAL ALIEN ADDENDUM REQUIRED IN ALL PUBLIC CONTRACTS FOR 

SERVICES BY C.R.S. §8-17.5-101, ET. SEQ. 
a. By its signature on this Agreement, Contractor certifies that, as of the time of its signature, it does not 
knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien and that, in order to confirm the employment eligibility 
of all employees who are newly hired for employment in the United States, the Contractor has participated 
or attempted to participate in the E-Verify program (“E-Verify Program”) created in Public Law 208, 104th 
Congress, as amended, and expanded in Public Law 156, 108th Congress, as amended, administered by the 
United States Department of Homeland Security, and the Social Security Administration or the Department 
Program (Department Program) established pursuant to §8-17.5-102(5)(c), C.R.S. 
 
b. Contractor agrees that it shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work 
under this Agreement; and that it shall not enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to 
the contractor that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform 
work under this contract. 
 
c. Contractor has confirmed or attempted to confirm through participation in the E-Verify or Department 
Program the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment in the United 
States.    
 
d. Contractor shall not use E-Verify or Department Program procedures to undertake preemployment 
screening of job applicants while work under this Agreement is being performed. 
 
e. If Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this Agreement 
knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Contractor shall: (1) notify the subcontractor and 
the Owner within three days that the Contractor has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing 
or contracting with an illegal alien; and (2) terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if, within three 
days of receiving the notice required herein, the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with 
the illegal alien; except that the Contractor shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during 
such three days the subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not 
knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 
 
f. The Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request by the Colorado Department of Labor and 
Employment made in the course of an investigation that the Department is undertaking pursuant to the 
authority established in C.R.S. Section  8-17.5-101(5). 
 
g. If Contractor violates a provision of this Illegal Alien Addendum, the Owner may terminate this 
Agreement for breach of contract. If the Agreement is so terminated, the Contractor shall be liable for 
actual and consequential damages to the Owner. Contractor understands that, in the event of such a 
termination, Owner is required to notify the office of the Colorado Secretary of State.   
 
 
 
 

66



 

1 
9/26/2025 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

THIS MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT (this Agreement) made 
effective January 1, 2026 is by and between the Gunnison Valley Transportation 
Authority (RTA), Gunnison, Colorado, and Truex Management Services, Inc., a 
Colorado Corporation (TMS). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 TMS provides the non-exclusive professional management services of Scott 
Truex (the Services); The RTA desires to engage TMS to provide the Services according 
to this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals and the mutual covenants 
and obligations hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows: 
 
TERM.   
 

  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date first set forth above and 
shall terminate on December 31, 2026, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.  This 
agreement may be renewed for three (3) successive one (1) year terms as provided herein. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES.   
   
 TMS shall provide to the RTA the services of Truex for the purposes of 
performing the duties of Executive Director for the RTA as described in the attached 
Scope of Work (Exhibit A).  Truex shall perform the duties of Executive Director for the 
RTA as and described by its governing documents and as managed by the Board of 
Directors of the RTA.  TMS shall also provide office space, telephones, computers, office 
equipment, and internet access for Truex’s use.  All of the above shall be referred to as 
“Services”. 
 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  
 
(a) TMS is an independent contractor to the RTA.  Truex is not, and shall not be 

construed to be, an employee of RTA. At all times while Truex provides services to 
RTA, he is and shall be an employee of TMS. 

 
(b) In exchange for the Services, the RTA shall pay TMS the contract rate of $17,916.67 

per month for the 2026 calendar year (the Compensation); the Compensation shall be 
paid on or before the twentieth day of each month.   

 

67



2 
9/26/2025 

(c) The Compensation set forth in (b) above, is intended to fully compensate TMS for all
of the services including all compensation for Truex, and all other charges, expenses,
overhead, payroll costs, and employee benefits, except as specifically set forth herein.

(d) The RTA shall reimburse TMS for any travel expenses incurred by Truex required for
his performance as Executive Director of the RTA with the exception of vehicle
expenses within Gunnison County, which shall be the expense of TMS.

(e) TMS is not entitled to unemployment insurance benefits from the RTA.  TMS is
obligated to pay federal and state income tax on any moneys paid to TMS
pursuant to this Agreement.  TMS will determine and be responsible to pay
compensation for Truex, including any salary, vacation time, health insurance,
retirement benefits, workmen’s compensation, and other benefits that TMS may
determine to be appropriate, and pay Truex accordingly.

INDEMNIFICATION. 

(a) TMS agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the RTA, its partners, officers,
directors, agents and employees of and from any and all liability, claims, liens,
demands, actions and causes of action whatsoever (including reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs) arising out of or related to any loss, cost, damage or injury, including
death, of any person or damage to property of any kind caused by the misconduct or
negligent acts, errors or omissions of TMS or its employees or sub-consultants.

(b) The RTA is protected by and subject to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act.
Neither party shall interpret this provision as a waiver of governmental immunity.

(c) This provision shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement with
respect to any liability, injury or damage occurring prior to such termination.

TERM, RENEWAL, AND TERMINATION. 

This Agreement shall run for a period of twelve months starting January 1, 2026, 
and ending December 31, 2026.  Subject to the annual appropriation of funds by the RTA 
to provide the type of management services described herein, this agreement shall 
automatically renew for three (3) successive one-year terms unless written notice is given 
by RTA to TMS on or before October 1st of its intention to terminate this agreement..  In 
the event agreement is not terminated, the contract rate set forth in subsection (b) above 
shall be increased by 4% over the contract rate of the previous year. The parties shall 
discuss any changes to the Scope of Work no later than sixty (60) days’ prior to the 
beginning of the next contract term.  TMS shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon ninety (90) days’ prior written notice 
to the RTA.  The RTA may not terminate this Agreement absent a breach of contract by 
TMS.     

68



 

3 
9/26/2025 

 
INSURANCE.  
 
 TMS agrees that at all times during the term of this agreement, TMS will cause 
Truex to carry a professional liability policy in the amount of $2,000,000.  TMS shall 
also cause Truex to carry and maintain in full force and effect and at Truex’s sole cost 
and expense, comprehensive automobile liability insurance on all vehicles used in the 
performance of this agreement in the amount of $100,000.00 per person and $300,000.00 
per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage and to carry an umbrella policy 
with a personal liability limit of at least $2,000,000 per occurrence.    
 
NOTICES.  
 
 Any notice, demand or communication which either party may desire or be 
required to give to the other party shall be in writing and shall be deemed sufficiently 
given or rendered if delivered personally or sent by certified first class US mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
 If to TMS: 
  Truex Management Services, Inc.  
  c/o Scott Truex 

 P.O. Box 998 
 Crested Butte, CO  81224 
 

 If to RTA: 
  Board of Directors 

 Gunnison Valley Transportation Authority  
 P.O. Box 1191 
 Crested Butte, CO  81224 
 
With a copy to: 
 The County Manager 
 Gunnison County 
 200 E. Virginia 
 Gunnison, CO 81230 

 
Either party has the right to designate in writing, served as provided above, a different 
address to which any notice, demand or communication is to be mailed. 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT.   
 
 This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties hereto with 
respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior agreements, 
proposals, negotiations and representations pertaining to the Scope of Work..  This 

69



 

4 
9/26/2025 

Agreement shall not be modified or amended in any manner except by written instrument 
executed by the parties. 
 
 
APPLICABLE LAW.   
 
 This Agreement is entered into at Gunnison County, Colorado, and it is agreed 
that the proper jurisdiction and venue of any action pertaining to the interpretation of 
enforcement of this Agreement shall be in the District Court of Gunnison County, 
Colorado. 
 
INVALIDITY OR INAPPLICABILITY. 
 
 If any term, provision or paragraph of this Agreement, or the application thereof, 
be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such 
terms, provisions and paragraphs other than that which is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable, shall not be effected thereby and each of the remaining terms, provisions 
and paragraphs of the Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the extent permitted 
by law. 
 
BINDING AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement and the terms, covenants and conditions herein contained shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto 
upon approval of the parties, representatively. 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed the day 
and year first above written. 
 

TRUEX MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 
 
_________________________  By: _______________________________ 
Date              Scott A. Truex  

 Director 
 

 GUNNISON VALLEY   
TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY 

 
_________________________  By:________________________________ 
Date           Matthew Schwartz 

 Chair of the Board of Directors 

70



 

5 
9/26/2025 

Exhibit A: Scope of Work: Gunnison Valley RTA Executive Director (RTA) 

Broad Scope 

1. Financial Management: 
o Develop and oversee budgets. 
o Monitor financial transactions and create financial reports. 
o Manage audits and ensure compliance with regulations. 
o Oversee grant applications and reporting. 

2. Policy Implementation: 
o Work with the Board Chair to prepare meeting agendas and materials. 
o Implement Board directives. 
o Ensure RTA policies and plans are current and compliant. 

3. Operational Leadership: 
o Direct and coordinate day-to-day activities and operations. 
o Supervise and guide air service, marketing and communication, and bus 

operations managers to ensure timely and high-quality outcomes. 
o Negotiate contracts and oversee execution. 

4. Communication: 
o Act as the primary contact for stakeholders, public inquiries, and media. 
o Represent RTA at community and professional meetings. 
o Maintain relationships with local, state, and federal partners. 

Detailed Scope 

General Tasks 

• Collaborate with municipalities, counties, and the state for transit system 
management. 

• Manage senior transportation programs with GVH and Mt. Express. 
• Guide negotiations with airlines and bus service providers. 
• Respond to public and law enforcement inquiries. 
• Present RTA goals and policies to the public. 

Administrative  

• Create and update operational reports. 
• Draft RFPs for purchases and services. 
• Maintain organized and secure RTA records. 
• Ensure insurance policies are current and adequate. 
• Manage relationships with contractors and partners. 

Communication  

• Regularly communicate with: 

71



 

6 
9/26/2025 

o Board members, managers, and contractors. 
o Federal and state representatives (CDOT, FTA, etc.). 
o News media and the general public. 

• Maintain and update transit schedules on platforms like Google Transit and 
Swiftly App. 

Contract Management 

• Draft and review contracts with legal counsel. 
• Oversee contracts with CDOT, transportation service providers, airlines, 

contractors, consultants, and others. 
• Ensure compliance with all contractual obligations. 

Financial Oversight 

• Prepare annual and five-year budgets. 
• Audit invoices and monitor monthly financial statements. 
• Ensure timely reimbursement requests and proper recording of revenues. 
• Submit required financial and performance reports. 

Grant Management 

• Write and manage grant applications for federal and state funding. 
• Ensure compliance with CDOT and FTA requirements. 
• Submit monthly and quarterly reports. 
• Research new grant opportunities. 

Meeting Preparation 

• Create and distribute Board meeting agendas and packets. 
• Represent RTA at conferences and regional planning sessions. 
• Participate in Air Command, Board, and community meetings. 

Planning and Policy Development 

• Develop and maintain RTA plans, including: 
o Title VI Plan, LEP Plan, Substance Abuse Policy. 
o Fleet Management and Maintenance Plan. 

• Coordinate air and ground planning efforts. 
• Work with the Board on long-term strategies., including succession planning. 

Regulatory and Legal Compliance 

• Ensure ADA compliance and adherence to federal/state regulations. 
• Manage data retention and respond to public records requests. 

72



 

7 
9/26/2025 

• File reports for DBE, NTD, and Drug/Alcohol Management. 

  

73



 

8 
9/26/2025 

 

74


	Notice
	Agenda
	Minutes 25-9
	Financial Report
	Air Program Report
	Bus Program Reports
	Executive Director's Report
	Request for route change memo
	301 Tomichi Facility memo
	IGA amendments memo
	Second Bustang Outrider bus memo
	Meeting minutes memo
	Bus window advertising request
	 - UGRWCD Artwork
	 - RTA bus window advertising policy
	Planning for possible future bus service to Montrose memo
	Brush Creek bus stop request memo
	Brush Creek Bus Stops Funding Request letter from County
	2026 Budget
	2026 Five-Year Financial Plan
	RTA - TMS  Management Contract redline from last packet
	RTA - TMS  Management Contract clean



